
 

 

2024 TAA Annual Meeting 
Hacienda del Sol Guest Ranch Resort | Casa Luna Ballroom 

January 22, 2024 

 
 



 

TABLE OF CONTENTS   

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
INTRODUCTION ….……………………………………………………………………………………………… XX 

RSVP ………………………..…………………………………………………………………………………….…  

Voting Procedures …..…………………………………………………………………………………….… XX 

2024 ANNUAL MEETING AGENDA …………………………………………………………………………  

2023 ANNUAL MEETING MINUTES …………………………………………………….………………… XX 

2023 BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES ……..…………………………………….….… XX 

NOMINATIONS ………………………………………………………………………………………………….…  XX 

New-Member Nominations …………………………………………….…………………………….... XX 

Rob Elias ………………………………………………………….…………………………………………. XX 

Michael Levin ………………………………………………….……..…………..……………………… XX 

Rose Lopez …………………………………………………….…………………………………………… XX 

Karla Morles ………………………………………………..……..……………………………………… XX 

Lesah Sesma-Gay ……………………………………….…..…………………………………………… XX 

Director Nominations ……………………………………..……………………………………..………… XX 

Todd Jackson …………………………………………..………………………………….……………… XX 

Judy Rich ………………………………………………..…………………………………………..……… XX 

Ellen Wheeler ………………………………………..…………………………………………………… XX 

TUCSON AIRPORT AUTHORITY BYLAWS ……………………………………………………………… XX 

 



 

INTRODUCTION   

 

INTRODUCTION 
This packet contains information regarding the 2024 TAA Annual Meeting. Members are 
encouraged to read the information completely and carefully and to contact TAA Clerk Byron 
Jones with any questions or comments. Contact information is posted below. 
 
DATE AND TIME: 
Monday, January 22, 2024 
Networking Breakfast – 8:00 a.m. 
Business Meeting – 9:00 a.m. 

LOCATION: 
Casa Luna Ballroom 
Hacienda del Sol Guest Ranch Resort 
5501 N. Hacienda del Sol Road 
Tucson, Arizona, 85718 

 

RSVP 
Active Members and Emeritus Members are requested to RSVP no later than Friday, January 
12, 2023 by submitting a response to the SurveyMonkey form linked below.  
 

https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/8GDBY8Y 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CONTACT: 
Byron M. Jones, CMC 
Tucson Airport Authority Clerk 
(520) 573-4822 

https://goo.gl/maps/doKEgnF6pTj7GXbG7
https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/8GDBY8Y
mailto:bjones@flytucson.com?subject=2024%20TAA%20Annual%20Meeting


 

INTRODUCTION   

 

VOTING PROCEDURES (ACTIVE MEMBERS ONLY) 
In-Person 
The ballot for the Annual Meeting may be accessed HERE. It may be filled in electronically in 
advance of the meeting but, for the ballot to be cast and counted, it must be printed, brought 
to the Annual Meeting, and submitted to the TAA Clerk during the voting period on the agenda. 
Additional copies of the ballot will be available onsite. As a reminder, under the Bylaws, only 
Active Members may vote in TAA elections. 
 
By Proxy 
If you are unable to attend the 2024 Annual Meeting, you may designate a proxy to attend on 
your behalf for purposes of reaching a quorum and to cast a ballot during the election. If you 
designate a proxy, you will need to choose whether the proxy will hold a General Proxy or a 
Directed Proxy. With a General Proxy, the proxy holder may use their judgment in voting your 
ballot. Conversely, a proxy holder holding a Directed Proxy is required to vote the ballot as you 
direct. 
 
Designation a Proxy Holder: 
 
OPTION ONE: Complete a Proxy Declaration Form, sign, and submit it electronically 
(Preferred). 
 
OPTION TWO: Complete the Proxy Declaration Form, print the form, sign it, and ensure that 
the proxy holder receives the form. Also email a copy of the completed and signed form to TAA 
Clerk Byron Jones. 
 
Members are responsible for ensuring that the proxy holder receives the proxy form–either 
electronically or the signed original. 
 
 
 
 
 

https://s20532.pcdn.co/files/2024-annual-meeting-proxy-form.pdf
https://s20532.pcdn.co/files/2024-annual-meeting-proxy-form.pdf


 

2024 ANNUAL MEETING │ JANUARY 22, 2024  1 

AGENDA 

TUCSON AIRPORT AUTHORITY | 2023 ANNUAL MEETING 
Monday, January 22, 2024 | 8:00 a.m. 

Hacienda del Sol Guest Ranch Resort | Casa Luna Ballroom 
5501 N. Hacienda del Sol Road, Tucson, Arizona 85718  

 
NETWORKING AND BREAKFAST │ 8:00 – 9:00 A.M. 

Active Members and Emeritus Members are invited to join the Board of Directors and TAA staff 
for breakfast in the Casa Luna Ballroom.  
 
BUSINESS MEETING │ 9:00 A.M. 

1. CALL TO ORDER | ROLL CALL | DECLARATION OF PROXIES: All persons holding proxies shall 
present them to the TAA Clerk for verification.  

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Active Members are requested to approve the minutes from the 
Annual Meeting held on January 23, 2023. 

3. RATIFICATION OF ALL 2023 BOARD ACTIONS: Active Members are requested to ratify all 
actions taken by the 2023 Board of Directors. 

4. ELECTION OF MEMBERS AND DIRECTORS: Active Members will vote on the nominations for 
new TAA members and corporate directors as recommended by the Nominating Council. 

a. Report from the Nominating Council Chair. 
b. Active Members may present their ballots to the TAA Clerk for tabulation.  

5. RECOGNITION OF NEW EMERITUS MEMBERS  
RECOGNITION OF MEMBERS WHO PASSED AWAY IN 2023 
 

6. PRESENTATION OF THE CUSTOMER CARE AWARD WINNER: Recognition of a TAA employee 
who has exemplified the TAA customer care principles of safety, security, and customer 
service throughout 2022.  

7. STATE OF THE AIRPORT/INDUSTRY: Presentation from President/CEO Danette Bewley 
including an update on the TAA and its airport system, the successes of 2023 and what to 
look forward to in 2024. 

8. REPORT OF ELECTION RESULTS: The TAA Clerk will announce the results of the election. 

9. CLOSING REMARKS FROM THE BOARD CHAIR 

10. ADJOURN 
 
The Board of Directors meeting will convene in the Hacienda Room shortly following the Annual Member 
Meeting as reflected in the Board of Director’s agenda. 



 

INTRODUCTION   

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TUCSON AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

2023 ANNUAL MEETING MINUTES 
 
 
  



 

2023 ANNUAL MEETING │ JANUARY 23, 2023  1 

MINUTES 

TUCSON AIRPORT AUTHORITY | 2023 Annual Meeting 
Monday, January 23, 2023 | 9:00 a.m.  

Hacienda del Sol Guest Ranch Resort | Casa Luna Ballroom 
5501 N. Hacienda del Sol Road, Tucson, Arizona 85718  

 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER | ROLL CALL | DECLARATION OF PROXIES 

Chair Dusenberry called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. 
 
Members Present (34): Cristina Baena, Francis Chambers, Steve Cole, Rob Draper, Bruce 

Dusenberry, Vance Falbaum, Guillermo Figueroa, Isaac Figueroa, 
Angela Gee, David Hameroff, Michael Hammond, Michael Hannley, 
Brandt Hazen, Todd Jackson, Fran Katz, Gary Kippur, Lee Lambert, 
Trindy LeForge, Michael McGrath, Timothy Medcoff, Omar Mireles, 
Tim Overton, Steve Pagnucco, John Parker, Tony Penn, Lea 
Márquez Peterson, Rhonda Piña, Judy Rich, Keri Silvyn, David 
Smallhouse, Lucinda Smedley, Carol Stewart, Michael Stilb, and 
Phillip Swaim 

  

Proxies (2): Larry Lang (Dusenberry) and Taunya Villicaña (Silvyn) 
Members in parentheses are proxy holders 

  

Members Absent (14): Larry Cesare, Michael Duran, Sally Fernandez, Tony Finley, Michael 
Franks, Herb Kai, Lisa Lovallo, David Lyons, Ned Norris, Ricardo 
Platt, Stephen Quinlan, Calline Sanchez, Kathy Ward, and Ellen 
Wheeler 

  

Staff Present: President/CEO Danette Bewley, Executive Vice President/Chief 
Operating Officer Bruce Goetz, Vice President/General Counsel 
Christopher Schmaltz, Vice President/Chief Revenue Officer John 
Voorhees, Vice President/Chief People Officer Twyla Salaiz, Vice 
President of Planning and Engineering Ken Nichols, Chief 
Communications Officer Austin Wright, Deputy General Counsel 
Kim Outlaw Ryan, Director of Marketing and Strategic 
Communications Jessie Allen, Strategic Communications and 
Relationships Manager Craig Reck, Executive Assistant Cathy 
Borders, Marketing and Design Manager Celeste Fitzgerald, 
Customer Relations Administrator Minou De La Rosa, IT Systems 
Administrator Matthew Chandler, IT Support Technician Randy 
Janek, Legal Assistant Jenn Shields, and TAA Clerk Byron Jones 

 
Thirty-six Members attended either in person or by proxy. Attendees represented 72% of the 
active TAA membership of 50 Members, which constituted a quorum. 



 

2023 ANNUAL MEETING │ JANUARY 23, 2023  2 

MINUTES 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

There were no corrections or amendments requested to the minutes. 
 

Motion by Member Lea Márquez Peterson, seconded by Member Tony Penn, to 
approve the minutes of the Annual Meeting held on January 22, 2022. The motion 
carried unanimously by voice vote. 
 

3. RATIFICATION OF ALL 2022 BOARD ACTIONS 

There was no discussion. 
 

MOTION BY Member Francis Chambers, seconded by Member David 
Smallhouse, to ratify all actions taken by the 2022 Board of Directors. The 
motion carried unanimously by voice vote. 

 
4. ELECTION OF MEMBERS AND DIRECTORS 

a. Report from the Nominating Council Chair 

Nominating Council Vice Chair Steve Cole read out a report from the Council 
regarding the 2023 membership nominations. This year the Council continued its 
focus on identifying candidates who would contribute to TAA’s mission and vision, 
bring a fresh perspective, and help move the organization forward in reaching a 
balance in diversity that broadly reflects that of Southern Arizona. He thanked this 
year’s Nominating Council members: Chair Lisa Lovallo and Council Members Phil 
Swaim, Rob Draper, Rhonda Piña, and Frank Katz. 
 
The Council recommended the following slate of nominees:  
 

NEW MEMBERS: Lydia Aranda, Co-Founder and Principal, DiVeritas Group; 
Teresa Bravo, Government Relations Representative, Tucson Electric Power; 
Edmund Marquez, Owner, Edmund Marquez Allstate Agency; Nancy McClure, 
First Vice President, CBRE, Inc.; Shannon Murphy, Director of Sales and 
Marketing/Designated Broker, Diamond Ventures, Inc.; Shaima Namazifard, 
Vice President/SBA Business Development Officer, Wells Fargo Bank N.A.; and 
Amanda Wiggins, President/CEO, Marana Chamber of Commerce. 

 
DIRECTORS: Mike Hammond (Second, three-year term), Frank Katz (First, 
three-year term), Rhonda Piña (First, three-year term), Calline Sanchez 
(First, three-year term), and Phil Swaim (Second, three-year term). 
 
2024 CORPORATE OFFICERS: Keri Silvyn (Board Chair), Mike Hammond (Vice 
Chair), Phil Swaim (Secretary), and Vance Falbaum (Treasurer). 



 

2023 ANNUAL MEETING │ JANUARY 23, 2023  3 

MINUTES 

b. Active Members may present their ballots to the TAA Clerk for tabulation 

Vice President/General Counsel Christopher Schmaltz explained the voting 
procedures. Members were instructed to turn in their ballots to TAA Clerk Byron 
Jones for tabulation. The voting period would last for 15-to-20 minutes. 

 
5. RECOGNITION OF NEW EMERITUS MEMBERS  

RECOGNITION OF MEMBERS WHO PASSED AWAY IN 2022 

Chair Dusenberry recognized Member Rob Draper for his six years of service on the Board 
of Directors. Due to other commitments, Member Draper had chosen not to seek a 
further term as a director. Chair Dusenberry presented Member Draper with a 
commemorative plaque. Member Draper stated that it was a pleasure working with Chair 
Dusenberry and the other directors. He also expressed his appreciation of TAA’s 
leadership and TAA as a “high caliber” organization. 
 
Chair Dusenberry recognized individuals who were approved by the Board for Emeritus 
Membership: Joaquin Ruiz (16 years), Izaro Urreiztieta (13 years), Bruce Ash (20 years), 
Mercy Valencia (20 years), and Lisa Israel (18 years, including serving as the 2023 Board 
Chair). 
 
Finally, Chair Dusenberry recognized and asked for a moment of silence for TAA Members 
who passed away since the 2022 Annual Meeting: 
 Richard D. Parlett – Member from 1995 to 2017; passed away on July 11, 2022. 
 Arnold R. Elias – Member from 1982 to 2009 and served as the 1994 Authority 

President; passed away on August 14, 2022. 
 Octavio A. Molera – Member from 1983 to 2005; passed away on January 6, 2023. 

 
President/CEO Danette Bewley presented Chair Dusenberry with the “Propeller Award” 
in recognition of his tireless commitment to TAA and specifically for his service as Board 
Chair for 2021 and 2022. Chair Dusenberry thanked Ms. Bewley and stated that the Board 
accomplished much during the past two years and that it was a pleasure to serve as Board 
Chair.  
 

6. PRESENTATION OF THE CUSTOMER CARE AWARD WINNER 

President/CEO Danette Bewley explained that CARE stands for Courtesy, Attitude, 
Responsiveness and Exceeding Expectations, and that the award is to recognize TAA 
employees who exemplify the TAA customer care principles of safety, security, and 
customer service. The 2022 Customer CARE Award winner was announced as being Craig 
Reck, TAA’s Strategic Communications and Relationships Manager. Mr. Reck accepted the 
award, expressing his appreciation to TAA’s leadership and his co-workers in Marketing 
and Strategic Communications team. 



 

2023 ANNUAL MEETING │ JANUARY 23, 2023  4 

MINUTES 

 
7. STATE OF THE AIRPORT/INDUSTRY 

Members were shown a Year-in-Review video which featured interviews from TAA 
employees and external partners highlighting TAA’s accomplishments and its importance 
to the region. 
 
President/CEO Danette Bewley encouraged the members to refer to their meeting 
packets, which contained copies of the updated Strategic Plan and a report to supplement 
the Year-in-Review video presentation. 

 
8. 75TH ANNIVERSARY EVENT KICK-OFF 

President/CEO Danette Bewley revealed the logo for TAA’s 75th Anniversary in 2023. She 
stated that TAA will host several events during the year, including the 75th Anniversary 
Celebration, which will be held at the Pima Air and Space Museum in April. Members will 
begin receiving “save-the-date” invites sent by TAA’s Marking and Strategic 
Communications team. 
 

9. REPORT OF ELECTION RESULTS 

TAA Clerk Byron Jones reported the results of the election as follows: 
   
 NEW MEMBERS 

Nominee 
"Yes" 
Votes 

"No" 
Votes 

Non-
Votes 

Total 
Votes 

"Yes" 
(%) 

"No" 
(%) Result 

Lydia Aranda 30 1 4 31 97% 3% Elected 
Teresa Bravo 32 0 3 32 100% 0% Elected 
Edmund Marquez 31 0 4 31 100% 0% Elected 
Nancy McClure 33 1 1 34 97% 3% Elected 
Shannon Murphy 33 1 1 34 97% 3% Elected 
Shaima Namazifard 28 4 3 32 88% 12% Elected 
Amanda Wiggins 32 0 3 32 100% 0% Elected 

 
  CONTINUING MEMBERS 

Nominee 
"Yes" 
Votes 

"No" 
Votes 

Non-
Votes 

Total 
Votes 

"Yes" 
(%) 

"No" 
(%) Result 

Fran Katz 34 0 1 34 100% 0% Elected 
  



 

2023 ANNUAL MEETING │ JANUARY 23, 2023  5 

MINUTES 

   DIRECTOR 

Nominee 
"Yes" 
Votes 

"No" 
Votes 

Non-
Votes 

Total 
Votes 

"Yes" 
(%) 

"No" 
(%) Result 

Mike Hammond 34 0 1 34 100% 0% Elected 
Fran Katz 34 0 1 34 100% 0% Elected 
Rhonda Piña 32 0 3 32 100% 0% Elected 
Calline Sanchez 31 0 4 31 100% 0% Elected 
Phil Swaim 34 0 1 34 100% 0% Elected 

 
10. CLOSING REMARKS FROM THE BOARD CHAIR 

Chair Dusenberry expressed his appreciation for the honor of being elected Board Chair 
and praised the other directors and TAA’s staff for its many accomplishments during his 
term. He reminded the Members that they are the foundation of the organization and 
their continued advocacy in the community is key to TAA’s continued success. He 
concluded by announcing that the Board of Directors meeting would begin shortly in the 
Hacienda Room. Members were invited to stay for the meeting or leave as the business 
was concluded. 
 

11. ADJOURN 

There being no further business to discuss, Chair Dusenberry adjourned the meeting at 
9:55 a.m. 

 
 
APPROVED BY:  Prepared by: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Secretary 
 
Date: ____________________ 

  
 
__________________________________ 
Byron M. Jones, CMC, TAA Clerk 
 
Date: ____________________ 

 



 

INTRODUCTION   

 

 

TUCSON AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

2023 BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 
 

 December 6, 2023 – Board of Directors Regular Meeting 
 
 November 13, 2023 – Board of Directors Special Meeting 

 
 November 1, 2023 – Board of Directors Regular Meeting 

 
 September 6, 2023 – Board of Directors Regular Meeting 

 
 June 14, 2023 – Board of Directors Regular Meeting 

 
 April 4, 2023 – Board of Directors Regular Meeting 

 
 February 28, 2023 – Board of Directors Special Meeting 

 
 January 23, 2023 – Board of Directors Regular Meeting 

 

https://s20532.pcdn.co/files/20231113_Board_of_Directors_Minutes.pdf
https://s20532.pcdn.co/files/20231101_Board_of_Directors_Minutes.pdf
https://s20532.pcdn.co/files/20230906_Board_of_Directors_Minutes.pdf
https://s20532.pcdn.co/files/20230614_Board_of_Directors_Minutes.pdf
https://s20532.pcdn.co/files/20230404_Board_of_Directors_Minutes.pdf
https://s20532.pcdn.co/files/20230228_Board_of_Directors_Minutes.pdf
https://s20532.pcdn.co/files/20230123_Board_of_Directors_Minutes.pdf


 

TAA NOMINATIONS 
2024 

 
 



 

 
 
 
 

 
NEW MEMBER 
NOMINATIONS 

 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ROB ELIAS 
President/CEO 
Tucson Hispanic Chamber of Commerce 
Profession: Association/Non-Profit 
 
Application received: September 30, 2023 
 
Nominated by: Bruce Dusenberry 
 



     
    

     

                
              

             

  

  

          

  

         

        

   
 

     
   

   
   

    
      

    
    

     
    

 

 
 

 

 

 

           
            

 

               
     

              
    

               
          

         
   

            
             

              
           

       
              

     

 

 

     
    

 

          

            

 

 

 

 

                   
        

     



 

            
             

           

               
   

                
          

              
              

           

              
                 

  

        

           
 

         

                 
             

             
                

            
 

             
              

     





    

 
   

    

 

 

  
   

  
   

 
  

 
  

 

  

    

  

  

   

     

              

            

            
            

             

          
 

            
             

          

        
              

            

               

                
             

    

             

             

  

  
 

      
      

           



    

 
   

    

 
  

 

  
   

  
  

 
  

 
  

 

  

  

    

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

          

  
             

         

  
               

             
       

  
              

          
  

  

  

  

  

  

            



 
 

     

 

       
       
         
       

      
        

   

 

  

  

  

 

     
    

  
   

  

       
        

 
          
          

      
          

 
           

     
          

    
         

   

       
 

          
      

        
    

          
           

         
         

             
          

     

     
            

      

            
           
         

           
            

            
         

            
  



 
 

     

 
  

      
   

  
         
     

      
  

      
    

       
    

   
      

        
          
         

         
           

        
       

    
           

     

         
       

           
          

    

       
 

          
         

         
  

        
       

         
    

       
          

       
       

      
      

 

       
        

         
         

       



    
    

     

      
    

                  
                

                 
                   

              

               

         

                

          

                   
                 

                     
 

  

 

    



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MICHAEL LEVIN 
Chief Execu�ve Officer 
The Port of Tucson 
Profession: Real Estate 
 
Application received: September 29, 2023 
 
Nominated by: Edmund Marquez 
 



   
  

                
              

    

  

   

  

          
        

   
 

     
   

   
   

    
      

    
    

     
    

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

           
            

 
               
     

              
     

               
          

         
   

            
               

              
           

       
              

    

       
    

 
  

  

 

          

            

                    
        

    
 



 

            
             

       

               
    

               
               

             
            

         
          

         

              
               

     

     
  

     
 

                 
                

               
              

            
             

            
           

          

     





   
     

   
 

         

   

                      

                       

                   
                   

                     
                  

              

                      

  

         

                

                   

       

               

                 

                   

                   

                   
      

            
              

                  

                

              

                    

                   

              

                     
          

   







    
 

     

      
    

                  
                

                 
                   

              

               
 

                
 

                   
                 

                     
 

       
   

    



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ROSE LOPEZ 
President/CEO 
Intermountain Centers 
Profession: Healthcare 
 
Application received: September 22, 2023 
 
Nominated by: Brandt Hazen 
 



   
  

     

                
              

             

          
  

  

     
    

         
        

   
 

     
   

   
   

    
      

    
    

     
    

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

           
            

 

               
     

              
    

               
          

         
   

            
             

              
           

       
              

    

 

 

     
    

          

            

  

 

 

  

                   
        

     



 

            
             

          

               
    

             
        

              
         

   

              
               

    

      

     

     

        

                 
                

              
           

            
           

          

     





   

 

   

  
   

    
   

      

                
               

              

           
             

              
               

               
   

             
               

            
               

 

              
             

               
 

 

   



    

  

  

           
             

             
                

         

  

       
      

  

     
   

   
   

 

               
 

  
              
               

 
           
         
        
      

      
   

                  
                 
        

  
       
        
        
           
     

     
   

 

                 
               

      

  
          
            
        



    

  

     
       
                    
            

  
              

     
                 
     
            
               

              
            
          

      
    

     

        

 

                
               

               
       

  
                
            
            
         
       

       
  

 

                   
              

   

  
       
        
           



    

  

       
  

 

               
               

      

  
      
           

       
   

     
 

    
  

 

       
  
      

     
  

     

  
       
       

         
       
   

 

 

 



  
 

    

             
         

              
           

        
         

       

                   
                 

              
  

                  
                

                 
   



    
  

     

      
    

    

                  
                

                 
                   

              

               

 

                

 

                   
                 

                     
 

  

 

    



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

KARLA MORALES 
Vice President 
Arizona Technology Council 
Profession: Technology 
 
Application received: October 1, 2023 
 
Nominated by: Carol Stewart 
 



   
  

     

                
              

             

  

   

      
   

        

   
 

     
   

   
   

    
      

    
    

    
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

           
            

 

               
     

              
    

               
          

         
   

            
             

              
           

       
              

    

 

 

     
    

 

          

            

  

 

 

 

                   
        

     



 

            
             

          

               
    

             
            

         
             

         
             

         

              
               

    

       

     

        

       

                 
                

               
           

           
            

          
           

     





   
      

   

          

 

                        
                    

               

                     
                     

                     
        

                 

                   
                 

                   
                    

                    
       

                  
                   
        

                       
      

                      
                    

                     
               

                       
                       

         

 

   
     

           

 



   
   

  
    

       
          

     
           
          
          
        
           

 
          
           
         

       
               

           
           

 
          
            
       
          
         
          

   
             

 
         
           

 
           

 
        
         



      
            

        
         
        
         

  
          

          
        
        

    
            

          
         
       
           

       
            

          
        
          

 
     

         
  

         
   

     
  

      
     
  

     
  

  
        
           

  
  

           
   

  



        
  

  
          

 
  

     
           
          
          
         
      
             

  
            
              
            
           
        
          
            
           
        
       

   
        
         
          
        
            
         
           
           
         
          
           



    

  
    

      
    

   

                  
                

                 
                   

              

               

 

                

 

                   
                 

                     
 

  

 

    



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LESAH SESMA-GAY 
General Manager 
Casino del Sol 
Profession: Hospitality 
 
Application received: September 29, 2023 
 
Nominated by: Carol Stewart 
 



           
  

                
              

   

  

  

  
   

         

   
 

     
   

   
   

    
      

    
    

     
    

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

           
            

 
               
     

              
     

               
          

         
   

            
              

              
           

       
              

     

  

  

     
    

 

 

 

          

             

                   
        

     



 

            
              

          

               
    

             
           

             
           

          

              
               

      

       

      

       

                 
                

                
              

               
        

     





   

   
  

      
   

    

                  
                

  

                  
                

                
                

    

                  
  

 

  



   

  

         
          

          
         

   

     

           
           

 
             
         

   
          
           

          
           

   

  

     
          

     
  

      
  

 

    
        

 

        
         

  

          
           

  

 

  
    
   
   
    
   
      

    
 

 

    
   

 
    
 

  
  

 
   

   
  
 
      

 

  

     
 

      
     

  
       

 
      

 
      

 



  

  

                     
                     

  

    

    



     
      

      
    

   

                  
                

                 
                   

              

           

                
 

                   
                 

                     
 

  

    



 

 

 
 
 
 

 
DIRECTION 

NOMINATIONS 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TODD JACKSON 
Incumbent Nominee 
 
Term: Second three-year term 

 



TjKSO_N __________ o1_RE_cr_o_R_1_NT_E_RE_sT_F_o_R_M 

AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
TUC:1QNllll'PHA-AIRfOAT•R'IAIIAIUIIIU> 

Active Members who wish to nominate themselves for a vacancy on the Board of Directors must complete and 
submit this nomination form to the TAA Clerk no later than 11:59 p.m. on October 1, 2023. 

Home Address: 

E-mail Address: T Jackson@jacksonodenlaw.com 

Position/Title: Owner 

Work Address: 1670 E. River Road, Suite 260 

Work Phone No.: 520-884-0024 Work E-mail Address: TJackson@lacksonodenlaw.com 

What is your 
race/ethnicity? 
Please mark the one box 
that describes the 
race/ethnicity with which 
you primarily Identify. 

What is your gender? 
Please mark the one box that 
describes the gender with 
which you primarily Identify. 

Do you have a disability? 
Please mark the appropriate 
box. 

DIRECTOR INTEREST FORM 

□ 
IZ] 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

Hispanlc or Latino: a person of Cuban, Mexican, Chicano, Puerto Rican, 
South or Central American, or other Spanish culture or origin, regardless of 
race. 
White: a person that has origins in any of the original peoples of Europe, the 
Middle East, or North Africa. 
Black or African American: a person that has origins In any of the Black 
racial grou s of Africa. 
Asian: a person that has origins in any of the original peoples of East Asia, 
Southeast Asia, or the Indian subcontinent including, for example, Cambodia, 
China, India, Japan, Korea, Malaysia, Pakistan, the Philippine Islands, 
Thailand, and Vietnam. 
Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander: a person that has origins In 
an of the original o les of Hawaii, Guam, Samoa, or other Pacific Islands. 
American Indian or Alaska Native: a person that has origins in any of the 
original peoples of North and South America (induding Central America), and 
who maintains tribal affiliation or community attachment. 
Two or More Races: a person who primarily identifies with two or more of 
the above race/ethnici cat ories. 

✓ Male What is your age? Please 
mark one box below. 

Under40 

Female 41-50 

51-60 

✓ Over60 

Yes, I have a disability (or previously had a disability). 

✓ No, I do not have (nor have I previously had) a disability. 

1 



DIRECTOR INTEREST FORM 

Please explain how the TM will benefit from your service on the Board of Directors. 

I have developed a depth of knowledge regarding the airport and its operations from 
prior service on councils (finance/risk and governance), a special project team 
(parking vendor selection), and service on the governing board. I have 35 years 
experience as a business owner and practicing attorney representing a varied group 
of intutional, governmental, and individual clients in the region, along with 
participation in state bar leadership positions and charitable boards. I have very 
much enjoyed my work on each, learned from them all, and believe I can bring that 
experience and perspective to the T AA board and any community advocacy helpful to 
the staff. I believe that this an exceptionally well run and appealing airport -- vital to 
the unique community that we live in and love -· and would like to be part of the effort 
to continue that success into the future. 

I would be interested in serving in an officer role also if there is a need. 

8/21/23 

DIRECTOR INTEREST FORM 2 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

JUDY RICH 
Incumbent 
 
Term: Third three-year term 

 



DIRECTOR INTEREST FORM yycsc,N 
AIRPORT AUTHOR~ITY-------------------------
___ ,._T•JIVMIMlf!W) 

Active Members who wish to nominate themselves for a vaconr::y on the Boord of Directors must complete and 
submit this nomination form to the TAA aerie no later than J.l:59 p.m. on OCtober .t 2023. 

Home Address: 

E-mail Address: 

Posltion/rrtle: 

What is your 
race/ethnicity? 
Please mark the one box 
that describes the 
race/ethnicity with which 
you primarily Identify. 

What Is your gender? 
Please mark the one box that 
describes the gender with 
which you primarily identify. 

Do you have a disability? 
Please mark the appropriate 
box. 

DIRECTOR INTEREST FORM 

□ 

□ 

□ 

Hispanic or Latino: a person of Cuban, Mexican, Chicano, Puerto Rican, 
Sooth or Central American, or other Spanish culture or origin, regardless of 
race. 
White: a person that has origins in any of the original peoples of Europe, the 
Middle East or North Africa. 
Black or African American: a person that has origins In any of the Black 
racial rou of Africa. 
Asian: a person that has origins in any of the original peoples of East Asla, 
Southeast Asia, or the Indian subcontinent induding, for example, Cambodia, 
Chiria, India, Japan, Korea, Malaysia, Pakistan, the Phillpptne Islands, 
Thailand, and Vietnam. 
Native Hawalan or Other Pacific Islander. a person that has origins In 
a of the ori nal eoples of Hawaii, Guam, Samoa or other Pacific Islands. 
American Indian or Alaska Native: a person that has origins in any of the 
original peoples of North and south America (Including Central America), and 
who maintains tribal affiliation or commun attachmerit. 

or: More Races: a person who primarily Identifies with two or more of 
ethni • 

What is your ase? Please 
mark one box below, 

Yes, I have a disability (or previously had a disability). 

No, I do not have (nor have I previously had) a disability. 

Under40 

41-50 

51-60 

Over60 

1 



DIRECTOR INTEREST FORM 

Please exolain how the TAA will benefit from vour service on the Board of Directors. 

c~ ~ ·~ ~ <¥-~ 
A, ouyu=L io ~ C',m,tx1 ~ 

DIRECTOR INTEREST FORM 2 



 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

ELLEN WHEELER 
New Nominee 
 
Term: First three-year term 

 



y~o_N __________ o_,R_Ec_r_o_R _,N_TE_R_Es_r_Fo_R_M 
AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
TUCSON INTERIIATIONAL AIRPORT• RYAN .AflRELD 

Active Members who wish to nominate themselves for a vacancy on the Board of Directors must complete and 
submit this nomination form to the TM Clerk no later than ll:59 p.m. on October l, 2023. 

Home Address: 

E-mail Address: 

Position/Title: 

Work Address: 

Work Phone No.: 

What is your 
race/ ethnicity? 
Please mark the one box 
that describes the 
race/ethnicity with which 
you primarily identify. 

What is your gender? 
Please mark the one box that 
describes the gender with 
which you primarily identify. 

Do you have a disability? 
Please mark the appropriate 
box. 

DIRECTOR INTEREST FORM 

Work E-mail Address: 

DEMOGRAPHIC INFORMATION (Optional) 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

□ 

,/ 

Hispanic or Latino: a person of Cuban, Mexican, Chicano, Puerto Rican, 
South Qr Central American, or other Spanish culture or origin, regardless of 
race. , 

Wh~: a person that has origins in any of the original peoples of Europe, the 
Middle East, or North Africa. 

Black or African American: a person that has origins in any of the Black 
racial groups of Africa. 

Aslant a person that has origins in any of the original peoples of East Asia, 
SOuth~ast Asia, or the Indian subcontinent including, for example, Cambodia, 
China, India, Japan, Korea, Malaysia, Pakistan, the Philippine Islands, 
Thai~nd, and Vietnam. 
Native Hawaiian or Other Padfic Islander: a person that has origins in 
any of the ori inal peoples of Hawaii, Guam, Samoa, or other Pacific Islands. 

Am(Jrican Indian or Alaska Native: a person that has origins in any of the 
original peoples of North and south America (including central America), and 
who maintains tribal affiliation or community attachment. 

Two or More Races: a person who primarily identifies with two or more of 
the abov~ race/ethnicity cate ories. 

Male: s your age? Please 
ark one box below. 

""' 
Y~s, I h;;1ve a disability (or previously had a disability). 

No, I do not have (nor have I previously had} a disability. 

Under40 

41-50 

51-60 

Over60 

1 



DIRECTOR INTEREST FORM 

Please explain how the T AA will benefit from your service on the Board of Directors. 

First, I bring a wealth of experience from my career and volunteer activities in Tucson 
over many years. As a lawyer, I organized and advised corporate and other business 
entities. My subsequent career in. government at the federal and county levels has 
given me a deep understanding of how federal, state and local governments operate 
and the constraints they face (including, as just one example, open meeting laws). I 
also have extensive experience serving on and leading non-profit boards and 
understand the dynamics and relationships of such boards. In addition, I have a deep 
appreciation for the importance of TAA/the airport to Tucson. I know how important it 
is for the board and members to be.advocates for TIA In the community. Finally, I have 
served on several T AA councils, as a result of which I have gained an understanding 
of how T AA operates. I have been a11,;member of the Nominating Council since 2021. I 
also have served on the Superfund Council and Audit Council, and a number of years 
ago I participated in a procurement process. In summary, I believe I will bring a great 
deal of experience, expertise, enthu,siasm, and insight to my role as a TAA board 
member. 

DIRECTOR INTEREST FORM 2 



ANNUAL DISCLOSURE STATEMENT T~SON 
AIRPORT AUTHO-R-IT-Y----~-,.------------------
rUCSOI! rtml!NATIOHALA!flPOIIT-11YAH A11tF1W> 

Member /Board of Of rectors Annual Disclosure Statement 
(AC,opted August 7, 2012) 

,', ,. 

Name: Ellen Wheeler 

In an effort to avoid any appearance of a lack of integrity and transparency in Tucson Airport Authority's 
decision-making processes, TAA has adopteda !;Qnflict of Interest Policy applicable to all TAA members. In 
addition, members of the TAA Board of Directors are required to submit an annual disclosure statement to 
disclose (i} any personal or financial interests that have a reasonable likelihood to create, or to appear to create, 
a conflict of interest with T AA, and (ii) any cutrent business relationships involving TAA. 

I have the following pel'SC)nal or financial intetests to disclose in accordance with the Polley: 

None 

In 11ddition, I currently have the following .business, contractual or other finandal relations with the TAA: 

None 

I have read and agree to comply with the Tucson Airport Authority Conflict of Interest Policy. 1 have disclosed 
on the attached form all potential conflicts.anctrelevant business relationships involving TAA of which I am 
aware, if any. I will promptly report any chaflges that may create or appear to create a conflict of interest with 
TAA. 

9-28-23 

ANNUAL DISCLOSURE STATEMENT 1 



ELLEN K. WHEELER 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 

PIMA COUNTY, Tucson, Arizona (2013- 2018) 

Assistant County Administrator for Justice and Law Enforcement (2013-2017) 
Liaison to courts, County Attorney and law enforcement for County Administrator; 
facilitate joint planning and special projects with all law-related County departments. Lead 
acquisition and implementation of $1.5 million, multi-year MacArthur Foundation grant. 

Interim Director, Department of Behavioral Health (July 2018-December 2018) 

UDALL FOUNDATION, Tucson, Arizona (1999 - 2013) 
The Udall Foundation is an agency within the Executive Branch of the U.S. government. 

Executive Director (2008 - January 2013) 
• Oversight of all programs and staff located in Tucson and Washington, D.C. Strategic 

planning, policy development, outreach and day-to-day operations. Coordinate and write 
annual budget request to Office of Management and Budget; liaison with Congressional 
staff, assist Board chair on legislative efforts. 

Chief Operating Officer and General Counsel (2004 - 2007) 
Deputy Executive Director and General Counsel (2002 -- 2004) 
General Counsel (1999-2002) 

• Oversight of all programs and staff, supervision of other managers, and oversight of budget 
requests and legislative liaison,all as detailed above. 

• Legal counsel to the Board of Trustees and staff for all program areas. Legal focus is on 
federal law, including the following areas: appropriations; legislative relations; start-up 
of US. Institute for Environmental Conflict Resolution; employment and personnel 
issues; Freedom of Information and Privacy Acts; confidentiality in mediation; federal 
contracting rules; compliance with Executive Orders, policy directives and other federal 
requirements; internal policy development; ethics laws. Serve as Agency Ethics Officer, 
overseeing financial disclosure requirements and ethics training. Wrote and published 
Privacy Act and Freedom of Information Act regulations, 36 C.F.R. Part 1600 (2001). 

LEGAL: PRIVATE PRACTICE and COURT EXPERIENCE, Tucson (1983-1998) 

Law Office of Ellen K Wheeler (1993-1998) 
• General legal practice, with emphasis on real estate, corporations, business transactions, 



and litigation .. 
• Legal counsel to Udall Foundation beginning with the inception of the Foundation's 

activities in late 1994. Includesdrafting legislation to establish the U.S. Institute for 
Environmental Conflict Resolution and securing 1998 congressional passage and start
up appropriations (Public Law.105-156). 

Monroe and Associates (1987 -1993) .. · • . 
Partner in law firm, focusing onreal estate, corporations, business transactions, and 

litigation • 

Hecker, Phillips & Hooker (1984-1986) 
Associate in firm with a practice f'ocused on business and real estate, tax, partnerships and 

corporate law • • •• 

Law Clerk to Hon. Richard M. Bilby; U.S. District Court, (1983 -1984) 
Legal research and writing for federaldistrict judge. 

JOURNALISM AND GOVERNMti~T{1972 - 1980) 
,,·;,,: 

Rocky Mountain News, Denver, CO (1977-1980) 
Reporter on energy and environrti~nt; chief copy editor 

Office of Guy R. Martin, Assistant Secretary of Interior, Washington, DC (5178 - 8/78) 
Press secretary • 

Office of U.S. Sen. Floyd K. Haskell, P-.CO, Washington, DC (1975 -1977) 
Press Aide • 

Times Herald-Record, Middletown,NY (1974-1975) 
Reporter and copy editor • 

Green Valley News and Nogales International newspapers, Arizona (1972-1974) 
Associate editor • 

EDUCATION 

Juris Doctor, with highest distinction.(¢lass Rank: First) 
University of Arizona College of Law, 1983 
Order of the Coif; Executive Editor ofAtizona Law Review 

,.,. 

Bachelor of Arts in English, with highest distinction 
University of Arizona, 1973 •• • • 
Phi Beta Kappa, Phi Kappa Phi 

Ellen K. Wheeler Resume 



COMMUNITY AND PROFESSIONAL ACTIVITIES 

State Bar of Arizona, member, 1983+~resent 

Tucson Airport Authority, member; 2013 - present 

Tucson Botanical Gardens, Board of Directors, 2019 - present; Vice President, 2022- present 

Las Donas de Tucson, member, 201 ~ .. -:present 

Southern Arizona Visitors Center, v6luriteer and Certified Tourism Ambassador, 2023 

Rotary Club of Tucson, member 2006 - 2021 

Miramonte Neighborhood Association, President, 2021 - present 

Pima County Health Benefits TrustAdl'isory Board, 2019 -- 2022 

Women's Foundation of SouthernArizona, Grant Selection Committee, 2018-2020 

Tucson Festival of Books, Moderator,· author panels, 2011 - 2020 

Habitat for Humanity Tucson, Board President, 2010-2012; Board Secretary, 2000-2007; Board 
of Directors, 1998 - 2007 and 2008 '.c.. 2017 

Women at the Top, 2014 - 2019 

Pima County Bar Association, Presiqeht;.1997 - 1998; Board of Directors, 1993 - 1999 

Board of Visitors, University of Arizona.College of Law, 2000-2014 

Arizona Town Hall, member 2006 -present; participant in Spring 2006 Town Hall 
' ~ ' '·: •• 

Arizona's Children Association, Board of Directors, 2003 - 2006 

Las Familias, Board of Directors, 1991 -c: 2003 (merged into Arizona's Children) 

West University Neighborhood As5-ociation, President 1986, 1988 

LEGAL PUBLICATIONS 

Note: "The Right to Use Groundwater inArizona after Chino Valley II and Cherry v. Steiner, " 
25 Ariz. L. Rev. 475 (1983). 

Casenote: "The Tavernkeeper's Duty to.Protect Patrons from Violence," 23 Ariz. L. Rev. 1525 
(1981). • • 

Ellen K. Wheeler Resume 



  - 1 -  
 

BYLAWS 

TUCSON AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

Incorporating all amendments through December 8, 2021 

ARTICLE 1 
 

TITLE, LOCATION, CORPORATE SEAL 

Section 1.1 The title of this corporation shall be "TUCSON AIRPORT AUTHORITY, 
INC." and may be referred to herein as “Authority.” 

Section 1.2 The principal office of this corporation shall be in or near the City of 
Tucson, Arizona, but this corporation may have other offices at such places as the Board of 
Directors shall designate and the business of this corporation may require. 

Section 1.3 The corporation shall have a corporate seal which shall be of such form as 
the Board of Directors may determine. The Board shall determine the custody, number and use 
of the corporate seal. The seal shall have inscribed on it the name of this corporation and the year 
of the corporation’s creation and the words “Corporate Seal, Arizona.” The Board of Directors 
may change the form and inscription of the seal as they deem appropriate. 

 

ARTICLE 2 
 

MEMBERSHIP 

Section 2.1 QUALIFICATIONS AND CLASSIFICATION 

2.1.1 The membership of this corporation shall be confined to people who live 
in and maintain their primary residence in the Tucson International Airport air service area, 
which includes the general Southern Arizona region, who have repeatedly evidenced their 
interest in the promotion of air transportation and commerce. 

2.1.2 The membership shall be divided into two categories to be known as 
"Members", and "Emeritus Members.” 

(a) Members. 

(i) A Member shall be entitled to vote at any meeting of 
Members and at any meeting of a council of which he or she is a member.  A Member shall be 
committed to accept Advisory Council appointments; support the interests of the Authority; not 
act in conflict with the interests of the Authority; actively participate in Authority activities; 
make every reasonable effort to attend Council and Membership meetings; support the Tucson 
Airport Authority in all reasonable ways requested by the Chair of the Board, the President/CEO 
or the Chair of the Council; and contribute his or her expertise as requested.  If a Member does 



  - 2 -  
 

not meet these membership requirements, the Board of Directors may, by vote of the majority of 
the membership of the Board of Directors (e.g., if a Board of 9 total directors, 5 votes are 
required), terminate such person’s membership in the Tucson Airport Authority. 

(ii) Members will serve for an initial fifteen (15) year term. 
Any Member may apply to continue as a Member for one successive 5-year term by providing 
notice to the Chair of the Nominating Council no sooner than April 1 and no later than October 1 
in the year preceding the expiration of his or her initial term. Applications for continuing 
membership shall be considered and voted upon as described in Section 2.2 below. 

(iii) Terms of Members and continuing Members shall begin on 
the date of the annual meeting at which their membership or continuing membership was 
approved and end after fifteen (15) years for Members, or five (5) additional years for continuing 
Members, on the day prior to the date their membership or continuing membership was 
approved. 

(iv) Any Member serving on the Board of Directors or an 
Advisory Council shall have his or her membership term automatically extended (whether the 
initial term or subsequent term) until completion of his or her service as a Director or Council 
member. 

(b) Emeritus Members. 

(i) Members who have completed a minimum of ten (10) years 
of service may be considered for Emeritus Member status. Emeritus Membership shall be limited 
to those members who have provided distinguished service to the Authority over a sustained 
period of time. All applications to be considered for Emeritus Membership must be submitted to 
the Nominating Council, which will evaluate the application and make an appropriate 
recommendation to the Board of Directors. Such change in classification requires approval by a 
majority vote of the Board. 

(ii) Emeritus Members will: 

(1) be invited to the membership business meetings of 
the Tucson Airport Authority, but not entitled to vote; 

(2) be invited to all Tucson Airport Authority 
membership social functions; 

(3) retain parking privileges at the airport as provided 
to all TAA members; and 

(4) be utilized as invited and, if willing, as consultants 
to the Tucson Airport Authority on special issues. 

(iii) A person who has entered Emeritus Membership 
classification shall not be counted in the membership limitation provided in Section 2.2.2 hereof. 



  - 3 -  
 

2.1.3 Individuals who are elected officials or high-level employees of any 
branch or level of government, except for elected officials or employees of indigenous/tribal 
nations and public educational institutions, are not eligible for TAA Membership.  For these 
bylaws, “high-level” shall mean any position that exercises decision making authority over a 
significant range of strategic or tactical matters involving that governmental entity or a 
division/department of that governmental entity. Determinations on whether a person is in such a 
“high-level” position shall be made by the Nominating Council, on advice from TAA’s General 
Counsel. Any current TAA member, as of the effective date of the bylaws containing this 
amendment, who is currently an elected official or high-level government employee retains all 
rights and privileges under these bylaws as a Member of TAA. However, no current Member 
who is an elected official or high-level government employee is eligible to serve on the TAA 
Board of Directors. 

Any current Member who becomes an elected official or high-level employee defined above 
after the effective date of the bylaws containing this amendment shall have their Membership 
suspended for the period they serve as an elected official or high-level government employee. 
Suspended Members retain all privileges of Emeritus Members under these Bylaws. Any 
suspended Member must resign from the Board or any Advisory Council on which they currently 
serve. The term of their Membership shall be tolled until they no longer are an elected official or 
a high-level government employee. When their period of service as an elected official or high-
level employee ends, the Member shall regain all rights and privileges of a TAA Member under 
these bylaws as of that date. 

Any suspended Member whose active Membership plus tolling period extends for more than ten 
(10) years is eligible to apply for Emeritus Member status under Section 2.1.2(b). 

For purposes of the numerical limitation of Members provided in Section 2.2.2, suspended 
Members shall be included in the count of total number of Members. 

Section 2.2 The election of new and continuing members shall be by secret ballot of 
the existing Members present in person or by proxy at the annual meeting of members and no 
one may be considered elected a member if more than one-quarter of the votes cast are negative. 

2.2.1 If a Member or Emeritus Member of the Authority in good standing 
desires to nominate for membership in the Authority a qualified person who is not then a 
Member, to be voted upon pursuant to the provisions of these bylaws, such Member or Emeritus 
Member shall nominate the person, pursuant to the process established for such nominations by 
the Nominating Council, no sooner than April 1 and no later than October 1 in the year preceding 
each regular annual meeting date. Members who desire to be considered for a Director position 
shall submit their application form and materials to the Nominating Council by October 1 in the 
year preceding each regular annual meeting date. 

2.2.2 All nominations for new or continuing Members of the Authority shall 
follow the process described in Sections 2.2.1 and 2.2.2. The Nominating Council shall review 
and consider all timely submitted new membership, continuing membership, and Director 
submittals. By November 20 of each year, the Nominating Council shall make its 



  - 4 -  
 

recommendations for new members, continuing membership, and Directors to the Board of 
Directors for the Board’s consideration and action. 

Nominations for the office of Director may also be submitted by written petitions signed by not 
less than twenty-one (21) voting Members in good standing; provided each petition includes all 
information required to be submitted by Members filing a nomination/or their own request for a 
director position. Such petitions must be submitted to TAA by November 20. 

The Board of Directors shall review the recommendations on nominations for new members, 
continuing membership, Director nominations (including those submitted by petition) and slate 
of officers, and may, by a majority of Board membership, vote to direct reconsideration of any 
individual member or director nominee back to the Nominating Council. Any nominee not 
directed for reconsideration by the Board shall be forwarded to the Members in accordance with 
Section 3.5.1 below. 

The Nominating Council, at a special meeting scheduled for this purpose, shall reconsider any 
nominee the Board so directs, and by simple majority vote, shall act on that nominee’s 
nomination. Any nominee approved by the Nominating Council after reconsideration shall then 
be forwarded to the Members in accordance with Section 3.5.1 below. 

The maximum number of TAA Members shall be sixty. 

 

ARTICLE 3 
 

MEETINGS OF THE CORPORATION 

Section 3.1 ANNUAL MEETING.  A meeting of the Members of the corporation 
shall be held annually on the fourth Monday in January of each year or on such other date in 
January as is established by a vote of the Board of Directors or by the Chair of the Board, for the 
purpose of electing Directors and for transaction of such other business as may be brought before 
the meeting.  Such meetings shall be held at the principal office of the corporation or at such 
other place in Pima County, Arizona, as is reflected in the meeting notice. 

3.1.1 NOTICE.  Notice of the date, time and location of the annual meeting 
shall be provided at least twenty-one (21) days prior to the meeting to each Member and 
Emeritus Member. Notice may be provided via regular mail or electronically or both, at the 
addresses of each Member and Emeritus Member in the records of the corporation. Failure of a 
Member and Emeritus Member to receive a notice, or any irregularity in the sending or receiving 
of such notice, shall not affect the validity of any annual meeting or of any proceedings or 
actions taken at any such meeting. 

Section 3.2 SPECIAL MEETINGS.  Special meetings of the Members of the 
corporation may be held in accordance with Arizona law, including in person, via technological 
means or a combination thereof. Special meetings may be held when demanded in writing by 
Members having at least ten percent (10%) of the votes entitled to be cast at such a meeting, 
when called by the Chair of the Board, or when called by vote of a majority of the members of 



  - 5 -  
 

the Board of Directors. Special meetings shall be valid for all corporate purposes and any action 
under corporate authority granted to Members under these Bylaws may be taken at such a 
meeting. 

3.2.1 Notice of any special meeting, providing the date, time, manner of holding 
the meeting, and agenda for the meeting, shall be sent at least twenty-one (21) days prior to the 
special meeting to each Member via regular mail or electronically or both, at the addresses of 
each Member in the records of the corporation. Failure of a Member to receive a notice, or any 
irregularity in the sending or receiving of such notice, shall not affect the validity of any special 
meeting or of any proceedings or actions taken at any such meeting. 

Section 3.3 QUORUM.  At any meeting of the Members, those present in person or 
represented by proxy, if in excess of fifty percent (50%) of the total Membership, shall constitute 
a quorum for all purposes.  If at any meeting insufficient Members are present to constitute a 
quorum, a majority of the Members present in person and by proxy may adjourn from time to 
time, without notice other than by announcement at the meeting until enough Members in person 
and by proxy to constitute a quorum shall be present; at such time any business may be 
transacted which might have been transacted at the meeting as originally notified. 

Section 3.4 VOTING. 

3.4.1 At all meetings of the Members the Members may vote in person or by 
proxy, and all questions except such questions the manner of deciding which is specially 
regulated by law or regulation or by contrary provision in these bylaws, shall be determined by a 
majority vote of the voting Members present in person and by proxy.  In the election of Members 
and of Directors, each voting Member shall be entitled to cast one vote for each position to be 
filled at the election; not more than one vote may be cast by any Member for any nominee. 

Section 3.5 REGULAR ELECTIONS. 

3.5.1 The Nominating Council, at its meeting held under Section 2.2.2 above, 
shall direct the TAA President/CEO, and her/his designees, to compile election materials for all 
nominees forwarded to the Members for election at the next annual meeting. The election 
materials shall include ballots for the election, and all materials submitted by a Member or 
Emeritus Member as part of the nomination packet, or as may be submitted as part of a Director 
nominating petition. 

The President/CEO shall cause the election materials (including the slate of nominees) to be sent 
to all Members at least twenty-one (21) days prior to the date of the annual meeting via regular 
mail or electronically or both, at the addresses of each Member in the records of the corporation. 
Failure of a Member and Emeritus Member to receive the election materials, or any irregularity 
in the sending or receiving of such materials, shall not affect the validity of the elections 
conducted at the annual meeting. 

3.5.2 In the event that any nominee shall be unable to serve if elected by the 
Members (through death, ineligibility, incapacity, resignation, or similar), at any time between 
the sending of all election materials to the Members and the date of the annual meeting, upon 
notice to her/him, the President/CEO shall cause a notice to be sent prior to the annual meeting, 



  - 6 -  
 

as soon as is practicable under the circumstances, to all Members of the ineligibility of the 
nominee to serve if elected by the Members. Prior to the casting of ballots at the annual meeting, 
the Chair of the Board or the Chair of the Board’s designee shall make a reminder announcement 
as to the inability of the nominee to serve. The election shall proceed with the ballots as were 
distributed to the Members. 

3.5.3 If a nominee who is unable to serve is elected by the Members, that 
election shall be deemed null and void and the position shall be deemed as vacant, except for any 
nominee to be a new Director. In that case, the position remains unfilled, and may be filled under 
the normal nomination process set forth in Section 2.2.1 and 2.2.2. 

Section 3.6 ORDER OF BUSINESS.  The order of business for all annual meetings 
shall include (1) a presentation of all proxies held by Members to the Chair of the Board and 
Secretary for verification; (2) a review of the minutes of the preceding annual meeting (and any 
special meeting held since the last annual meeting), and action on them; (3) Reports from 
officers and councils as the Chair of the Board deems necessary or appropriate; (4) Elections and 
their results, and (5) any other matter provided on the Agenda sent to Members prior to the 
annual meeting. 

 

ARTICLE 4 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Section 4.1 ELIGIBILITY, ELECTION, TERM, NUMBER AND QUALIFICATION 
AND TERM OF OFFICE. 

4.1.1 The Board of Directors shall consist of at least seven (7) and no more than 
eleven (11) members. The Immediate Past Chair of the Board remains a Director on the Board 
for one (1) year after her/his term as Chair of the Board expires. 

4.1.2 TERMS.  Each Director shall serve for the term, either one (1), two (2) or 
three (3) years, as provided for in the action that resulted in their election to Director, either by 
Member ballot or when filling a Board vacancy. A person may be nominated for a single term in 
any one election and may be elected to serve multiple subsequent successive terms. Terms shall 
be staggered in a way to preserve experience and institutional knowledge on the Board. 

The term of the Chair of the Board shall be two years, which starts on the date of their election 
by the Board. All other officers shall be elected to serve one-year terms.  A Director may serve 
as an officer for multiple one-year terms.  

The maximum time a Member may serve on the Board, regardless of applicable bylaw provision, 
is ten (10) years. 

Section 4.2 VACANCIES.  In the case of any vacancy on the Board of Directors 
caused by death, resignation, disqualification or other reason, the Nominating Council shall 
recommend one or more nominees to fill the vacancy to the Board of Directors. The remaining 



  - 7 -  
 

Directors may elect a nominee, by majority vote, to fill the vacancy on the Board, to serve only 
for the period between the election of the nominee to the Board and the next annual meeting. 

Section 4.3 REGULAR MEETINGS. 

4.3.1 After the adjournment of the annual membership meeting, at the same 
location if in person, the Board of Directors shall hold its first regular meeting of the year. At 
that meeting, the Board shall elect its officers and establish the schedule for at least three (3) 
additional regular Board meetings for the year. Regular meetings shall be held as scheduled 
unless cancelled by the Chair of the Board by providing notice to the Board more than twenty-
four (24) hours prior to the meeting date and time. 

4.3.2 Any Director who is absent without being excused by the Chair of the 
Board of more than fifty percent (50%) of all regular and special board meetings in any calendar 
year, shall be subject to removal from the Board by a majority vote of the membership of the 
Board. 

Section 4.4 SPECIAL MEETINGS.  Special meetings of the Board of Directors may 
be called by the Chair of the Board or any three (3) Directors.  Such meetings shall be held at the 
time and at any place within Pima County, Arizona, determined by the party or parties calling 
such meetings.  Notice of each special meeting shall be provided to all Directors as required by 
applicable Arizona law, but in no event shall such notice be less than twenty-four (24) hours 
prior to such meeting. 

Section 4.5 QUORUM.  A majority of the voting Members of the Board of Directors 
then serving shall constitute a quorum. 

 

ARTICLE 5 
 

OFFICERS 

Section 5.1 The officers of this corporation shall consist of a Chair (of the Board), 
Vice Chair (of the Board), Secretary and Treasurer. Such officers shall be elected at the first 
Board meeting held following the annual meeting. The slate of officers to be considered by the 
Board shall be as approved by the Nominating Council under Section 2.2.2 of these Bylaws. 

Section 5.2 The Chair of the Board shall preside at, and in conjunction with the 
President/CEO, shall set the agenda for all regular meetings of the directors, members, and 
executive council; shall appoint members of standing and special councils; and shall represent 
the interests of the Board of Directors when it is not in session.  The Chair of the Board may also 
be designated or referred to as the "Chair, Chairman or Chairwoman of the Board" or any other 
title that accurately reflects such Officer's duties. 

Section 5.3 The President shall be the Chief Executive Officer of the corporation and 
shall be selected by and shall serve at the pleasure of the Board of Directors.  The President/CEO 
shall have responsibility for the overall operation and management of TAA in accordance with 



  - 8 -  
 

its Mission and within the framework of Board adopted objectives and policies. The 
President/CEO shall have full responsibility for the management and administration of all TAA 
activities and operations and shall report to the Board on a regular basis.  The President/CEO 
shall have the authority to act on behalf of the Board of Directors and TAA in all respects except 
as may be specifically limited from time to time by Resolution of the Board of Directors.  During 
recess of the Board and the Executive Council, the President shall work closely with the Chair of 
the Board to ensure that the business and affairs of the corporation are conducted within the 
framework of Board-approved objectives and policies. 

Section 5.4 The Vice Chair of the Board shall perform such duties as may be assigned 
to him or her by the Board of Directors.  In the case of the death, disability or absence of the 
Chair of the Board, the Vice Chair of the Board shall perform and be vested with all of the duties 
and powers of the Chair of the Board. 

Section 5.5 The Secretary shall keep the seal of the corporation and affix the same to 
all instruments requiring its seal, as may be directed by the Board, the Executive Council, the 
Chair of the Board, or the President/CEO.  The Secretary shall also review and sign the minutes 
of meetings of Directors and general membership, shall authorize meeting notices to be issued by 
the President/CEO as required in these bylaws, and shall perform such other duties as may be 
required by the Board. 

Section 5.6 The Treasurer shall be familiar with the financial affairs of TAA and shall 
chair the Advisory Council that is responsible for the budget.  The financial records will be in the 
custody of the President/CEO and all records shall be maintained at the corporate office of TAA. 

 

ARTICLE 6 
 

VACANCIES IN OFFICE 

In the case of the death, disability or resignation of one or more of the officers, the 
majority of the remaining Directors shall fill the vacancies for the unexpired term.  One or more 
nominees shall be suggested by the Nominating Council to fill each such vacancy. 

 

ARTICLE 7 
 

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS, OFFICERS AND MEMBERS 

Neither the Directors nor the officers (other than the President/CEO) nor the Members, as 
such, shall receive any salary or compensation for their services, but by resolution of the Board 
of Directors may be reimbursed for their actual expenses paid or obligated to be paid in 
connection with service rendered solely for the benefit of the corporation. 



  - 9 -  
 

ARTICLE 8 
 

BOOKS, ACCOUNTS AND RECORDS 

Section 8.1 This corporation shall keep at its principal office in the State of Arizona 
records of the meetings of Members and a book showing a true and complete list of all Members, 
their residences, and books containing a record of the affairs of this corporation. 

Section 8.2 The books, accounts and records of this corporation shall be open to the 
inspection of any member of the Board of Directors at all times in business hours. 

Section 8.3 It shall be the duty of the Board of Directors at least once a year and 
within one hundred twenty (120) days after the close of the fiscal year to cause the books and 
accounts of the corporation to be examined and audited by a Certified Public Accountant.  
Thereafter it shall cause a copy of the report of said accountant, or a summary to be mailed to 
each of the Members of this corporation as part of the annual report of the operations of Tucson 
Airport Authority, Inc. 

 

ARTICLE 9 
 

AMENDMENT TO BYLAWS 

Subject to notice requirements below, any of these bylaws may be altered, amended or 
repealed by majority vote of the Board of Directors at any regular meeting; or at any special 
meeting called for the purpose, when all the Directors are present; or by a majority vote of the 
Members at any regular meeting; or at any special meeting called for the purpose.  No bylaw 
amendment may be acted on by the Board unless it has first been considered by the Corporate 
Governance Council. The Board of Directors shall, by majority vote, direct the Corporate 
Governance Council to consider bylaw amendments it deems appropriate and in the best interests 
of the corporation. If the Corporate Governance Council fails to timely meet to consider a 
proposed bylaw amendment and make a recommendation to the Board on the proposed bylaw 
amendment, the Chair of the Board may place the proposed bylaw amendment on the Board’s 
agenda for consideration and action. 

 

ARTICLE 10 
 

APPOINTMENT OF ADVISORY COUNCILS 

Section 10.1 The TAA Advisory Councils shall include the Corporate Governance 
Council, the Nominating Council, the Audit Council, and the Financial Council (to include an 
environmental/sustainability sub-council) and such other councils as the Chair of the Board may 
determine is appropriate. No Council shall have an even number of members and shall have not 
more than seven (7) or less than three (3) Members. The Chair of the Board shall appoint, with 
the advice and consent of the Board, Members to each council, and the Chair of each Council. 



  - 10 -  
 

The terms of such appointments shall be two (2) years. The Chair of the Board and Vice Chair of 
the Board may attend and participate in all Council meetings as non-voting members of a 
Council. 

Section 10.2 NOMINATING COUNCIL.  The Nominating Council shall consist of 
seven Members, who will be appointed for up to two (2), two-year terms, and may not serve 
more than four (4) consecutive years. The Chair of the Nominating Council shall serve two (2) 
years. The Council roster shall include, two (2) former Directors, two (2) current Directors who 
are not the Chair of the Nominating Council or Vice Chair of the Nominating Council, and three 
(3) Members who have never served as Directors. Nominating Council Members are not eligible 
to be nominated for a first term on the Board of Directors. 

 

ARTICLE 11 
 

EXECUTIVE COUNCIL 

The Executive Council will be comprised of the Chair of the Board, Vice Chair of the 
Board, Secretary, Treasurer and one other board member appointed by the Chair of the Board.  
The Executive Council may exercise the full authority of the Board of Directors with respect to 
setting the compensation and benefits for the President/Chief Executive Officer and with respect 
to such other matters as are specified by the Board of Directors from time to time. 

 

ARTICLE 12 
 

INDEMNIFICATION 

The corporation shall and does hereby indemnify and agree to save harmless each 
director, officer, employee, agent or member of said corporation, who was or is in the future a 
party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or 
proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, by reason of the fact that 
such person is or was a director, officer, employee, agent or member of said corporation, or is or 
was serving at the request of said corporation in any of said capacities, from any damages, costs, 
expenses, attorney fees, fines and amounts paid in settlement, actually and reasonably incurred, 
to the extent that such persons may be indemnified under the applicable provisions of the 
Arizona Revised Statutes pertaining to nonprofit corporations. 

THE FOREGOING was approved and adopted on December 8, 2021. 
 
 

  
____________________________________ 
Bruce Dusenberry, Chair of the Board 
 
 



  - 11 -  
 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Keri Silvyn, Secretary 
 
 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Christopher Schmaltz, Vice President and 
General Counsel 

 

 

Keri Silvyn (Dec 9, 2021 11:21 MST)
Keri Silvyn

Chris Schmaltz (Dec 14, 2021 13:39 MST)


	Cover Page
	Table of Contents
	Introduction
	Agenda
	2023 Annual Meeting Minutes
	Nominee Packet
	New-Member Nominations
	Rob Elias
	Michael Levin
	Rose Lopez
	Karla Morales
	Lesah Sesma-Gay

	Director Nominations
	Todd Jackson
	Judy Rich
	Ellen Wheeler


	TAA Bylaws



